
F-4-56 
Wolf sville SUrvey District 
Private 

ca. 1819-1940 

'lhe Wolfsville SUrvey District is centered on the intersection of 

Wolfsville, stottlemyer, arrl Pleasant Walk Roads arrl the additional junction of 

Harp Hill Road near the south en::i of the village of Wolfsville, a rural 

community established in the first decade of the 19th centw:y. 'lhe district 

contains primarily residences, with an 1847 church with 1893 arrl later 

alterations, a convenience store in a contriJ:uting 19th centw:y ccmnercial 

building, arrl three barns arrl several small domestic outb.tlldings. One of the 

barns is a dated 1819 stone structure with historical significance as a 

religious meeting place prior to 1847. 'Ihe buildings are mostly log, frame, 

brick, arrl stone, with modern alterations arrl new construction usually in 

concrete block, vinyl, aluminum, arrl asbestos shingle. 'lhe district's 

significance is based on its virtually unchancJed character as a small 

crossroads town of the period 1840-1940. Wolfsville, unlike Myersville arrl 

Middletovm, was not on the electric railroad line arrl did not experience the 

sometimes sweeping chan:Jes in buildings, architectural styles, arrl economic 

life that the transportation networks brought. It has always been a small 

conunercial center based on the agricultural arrl domestic needs of the 

surrounding rural area. 
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Orronological/Develqm:mt Pericxl: 
Agricultural - In:lustrial Transition, A.O. 1815-1870 
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Modern Pericxl, A.O. 1930-Present 

Prehistoric/Historic Pericxl '!hemes 
Agriculture 
Architecture, landscape Architecture, Community Pla.nnin;J 
Economic ( Conunercial) 
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Resource Types: 

category: District 

Historic Envirornnent: Village 

Historic Function and Use: 
Domestic/si.n;Jle dwelli.n;J/residence 
Domestic/secondary structure/smokehouse 
Domestic/secondary structure/other deperrlencies 
Conunerce/Trade/department store/general store 
Conunerce/Trade/specialty store 
Religion/religious structure/church 
Agriculture/sul::sistence/anllna.l facility/barn 

KnCMn Design Source: None 
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FollCMing are brief descriptions of the contrih.lting buildings: 

Leatherman store (Harne's store), 12487 Wolfsville Rd.: '!he present store 
includes two 2-story sections at the southeast co:rner of the square facing on 
both Wolfsville and stottlemyer Roads, with a small one-story link at the 
co:rner which contains the current main entrance. '!he exterior of the entire 
building is covered with gray composition siding and the roof is stan:ting seam 
metal. Incorporated within the building are sections with lCXJ sb:ucture. '!he 
south section has an elongated west elevation with a five-bay irregular 
facade. 'lhe southern three bays contain a residence with a one-story porch 
covering the entrance which is inserted between two bays . '!he porch has 
turned colmnns and a scroll -sawn balustrade. '!he chimneys are interior and 
interior end placements, reflecting several periods of addition and enlargenent 
over many years as the store passed from owner to owner. '!he sash is 2/2 with 
plain frames. 'Ihe stottlemyer Road section has a nore regular 4-bay facade 
with unused entrances at the outer bays on the first story urrler a full-width 
canopy with brackets. 'lhe sash is 2/2 with arched frames on the first story 
and 6 / 6 on the second story. A one-story concrete block extension is located 
on the east end of the building. 'lhe trih.ltary stream runs behind the two 
store buildings, separating the store and residence from a concrete block 
garage on the south side of the stream, which appears to have been built in the 
1930's. 'lhe east elevation of the Wolfsville Road section has an open porch 
facing the rear of the lot. 'lhe store was probably in existence by 1850 and 
the 1873 map shCMs two separate buildings on the site, with the Wolfsville Road 
building identified as F. Leatherman' s store. over the years, the store has 
had at least 9 successive owners, the latest owner being the daughter of Milton 
W. Harne, who had been the proprietor since 1945. 

Salem United Brethren Clmrch (Salem United Methodist Church): Built in 1847 
and reb.rilt in 1893, according to a stone plaque in the gable of the present 
building, the original section is a one-story hall type church with a gable 
roof and a m:>dern foyer on the west elevation. 'lhe exterior is covered with 
stucco painted white. A steeple with an open belfry stands at the west end of 
the composition-covered roof. 'lhe north elevation has three bays with 6/6 
sash. Adjoining the south elevation is a 1967 SUnday School building also 
covered with white stucco. The interior of the church has been much remodeled, 
retaining only its one-room plan with new furnishings and fixtures. From about 
1819, the United Brethren congregation met in homes and barns, particularly the 
Hoover stone barn (described later) at the south edge of the survey district. 
'lhe building of the 1847 church signaled the period of m:>dest grCMth in 
Wolfsville, indicating a grCMing congregation and the ability to finance a 
separate building for worship. In 1968, the Brethren Church united with the 
Methodists and the church became Salem United Methodist Church. 

stottlemyer Barn and Springhouse, 12463 Wolfsville Rd.: 'lhe dwelling on the 
north side of Wolfsville Road is a m:x:lern structure which replaced an earlier 
building probably built by Elias stottlemyer in the second quarter of the 19th 
century. '!he stone two-level springhouse and the frame bank barn were 
associated with the ear lier dwelling. '!he springhouse is located northwest of 
the present house and has fieldstone walls with l:x::>arded openings on each 
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elevation and a lower level entrance on the south gable errl. 'Ihe roof is 
standing seam metal, and an interior c::hllnney is located on the north 
elevation. 'Ihe frame bank barn is located east of the house with its ranp on 
the south elevation opening to Wolfsville Road. It has vertical sidin;J with a 
stone foundation and the f orebay on the north elevation. 'Ihe double swin;J 
doors on the south elevation have the traces of painted arches. 'Ihe roof is 
standing seam metal. A concrete block milk house probably b.J..ilt in the 1940's 
stands just southwest of the barn. 

Hoover House, 12328 Harp Hill Rd.: 'Ihe two-story stone dwellin;J was l::uilt 
about 1819, the date bein;J recorded on the stone barn on the east side of Harp 
Hill Road. 'Ihe house has a three-l:::la.y elevation facin;J east with a late-19th 
century one-story porch. 'Ihe porch has a decorative frieze in a zig-zag style 
reminiscent of ChipperDcile designs. 'Ihe same frieze is foun:i on the Jefferson 
Wolf House, 12504 Wolfsville Rd. 'Ihe Hoover House has interior errl c::hllnneys 
and a standing seam metal roof. A two-story rear win;J exterxis from the 
northwest corner. 'Ihe sash is 2/2. Dc::Jioostic outl:uildin;Js include a frame 
privy and a frame smokehouse, both with vertical sidin;J and standing seam metal 
roofs. 'Ihe stone foundation of a log springhouse is located northwest of the 
house. 'Ihis was deriolished in the mid-1980 's and was thought to have been the 
earliest extant structure in Wolfsville, possibly b.J..ilt prior to 1819 for use 
as a dwellin;J while the stone house was bein;J erected. 'Ihe Hoover House was 
the site of early United Brethren worship services prior to the b.J..ildin;J of the 
church in 1847. In the late 19th and early 20th centuries, until the 1930's, 
the house was a surrnner resort and boarding house called the Hoover House. It 
remained in the Hoover family until 1949 when the current owners purchased the 
property. 

Hoover Barn: 1£x::ated on the east side of Harp Hill Road directly opposite the 
Hoover House, the stone barn dominates the view of Wolfsville from Harp Hill 
Road. The plan is the traditional Gennan style stone barn with a banked 
entrance on the south and double vertical board swin;J doors at the top of the 
ramp. NarrCM vertical vent openings are located in the south, east, and west 
elevations. 'Ihe roof is stand seam and corrugated metal. A frame forebay 
extends over the stall level on the north elevation. 'Ihe barn is in rather 
deteriorated condition. 'Ihe date 1819 is fourrl on a stone at the southeast 
corner of the b.J..ildin;J. CUrrentl y used for storage, the barn no lorger 
functions as an agricultural l::uildin;J. 'Ihe larger early United Brethren 
worship meetin;Js took place here as well as in the Hoover House before the 
erection of the 1847 church. A centennial conunem::>rative meetin;J took place in 
1919 and other cererionies have been held in the barn every decade or so. 

J. J. G. Hoover House & store: Probably l::uilt about 1845-50, the present 
two-story structure may have some log materials within the aluminum-covered 
exterior. 'Ihe l:::la.sement level is faced with brick. The house has three 
irregular l:::la.ys with altered windows on the first story and a one-story porch. 
'Ihe windows are 2/2 and the lintels and frames on the secorrl story are nolded. 
A two-story rear win;J extends from the northwest corner and an exterior 
staircase leads to the secorrl story. A non-contri.b.ltin;J garage is also located 
on the property. 'Ihe l::uildin;J was used as a combination residence and 
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confectionery store in the late 19th and early 20th centuries; it is currently 
a duplex dwelling. 

Jacob D. Wolf House; Smith Shoe Shop, 12486 Wolfsville Road: '!he two-story 
fieldstone dwelling is located on the southwest corner of the square and has 
four bays with a one-story porch and a two-story rear wing which starrls at the 
edge of Pleasant Wal.1c Road. Possibly tuilt about 1865, it has double entrances 
in the outer bays and 6/6 sash. '!he standing seam metal roof has a center 
chinmey. '!he doors have 6 panels, partially glazed. '!he rear wing has vinyl 
siding. '!he porch has square posts supported on rusticated concrete block 
bases, indicating that it is an early 20th century addition. '!he house was 
purchased by Jacob D. Wolf from Gideon Hoover in 1868. By 1876, Jacob Smith 
had acquired the property, having both his residence and a shoe shop in the 
house until the early 20th century. 

Jefferson Wolf House, 12504 Wolfsville Rd. : '!he two-story dwelling probably 
has log structure under the present aluminum siding. It has three bays with a 
one-story porch and a two-story rear addition enlarging a probable smaller 
original wing. '!he windows are 2/2 with replacenent shutters on all elevations 
except the first story on the east elevation. Here the original fenestration 
has been altered, with a picture wind.OW' replacing the original two bays. '!he 
entrance is in the remaining bay. '!he roof is standing seam metal and the 
chimney is an exterior concrete block type on the north elevation. '!he rear 
wing has a two-story enclosed porch on the north side. A non-contribrting 
concrete block garage is also on the property. '!he house may have been tuilt 
by 1850 and has remained residential, unlike the other tuildings surrourrling 
the square. Jacob Wolf, Jr. may have tuilt the house, and Jefferson Wolf 
acquired it in 1895. 

Wolf--Ott Blacksmith Shop, 12432 Wolfsville Rd.: '!he two-story stone and log 
l::uilding was apparently tuilt as a blacksmith shop, as one is shOW'Il in the 
approxllna.te location of the house on the 1873 Titus map. eurrently it is a 
dwelling facing Pleasant Wal.1c Road. '!he first story is random ashlar stone and 
the log and frame upper section is covered with vinyl siding. '!he original 
appearance is difficult to discern with the several periods of alteration that 
have occurred. A one-story rear shed addition is on the north side of the 
l::uilding and the south elevation has a two-story open porch. '!he roof is 
standing seam metal. WindOW's are replacenent 1/1 sash. According to the 
Wolfsville history written in 1972, Jefferson Wolf OW'ned the blacksmithy, which 
was operated by John ott. A small frame barn with vertical siding and a 
standing seam metal roof is located near the small tril::utary stream which 
crosses Pleasant Wal.1c Road at the west bourrlary of the survey district. It was 
probably l::uilt in the 1890's. Near the road just east of the shop was a small 
log outl::uilding locally known as "Bum's Inn" which was a gathering place in the 
late 19th and early 20th centuries. '!he Wolfsville Bank held practices in it 
and other recreational activities took place there. It was derrolished possibly 
in the 1930's. 

Donohoo store; stottlemyer store, 12509 Wolfsville Rd.: Located on the 
northeast corner of Wolfsville and stottlemyer Roads, the two story log and 
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frame b.lilcli.rg was b.lilt about 1870 as a store arrl residence by Jacob D. WOlf, 
who leased it to several store proprietors over the years until the late 
1920' s. 'Ihe b.lilcli.rg has an irregular bay arran:1enent resulting fran several 
changes in use on the west elevation urrler a full-width one-story porch. 'Ihe 
exterior is covered with german sicli.rg. 'Ihe windows on the secom story are 
2/2. On the first story is a large central doorway with sidelights probably 
added in about 1930 when the last major alteration was made. A secom entrance 
is located at the north em of the elevation, with a pair of 1/1 wimows 
between the two doorways. 'Ihe gable roof is starx:ling seam netal arrl an 
interior chimney is located at the south em. A general store operated by John 
Donohoo in the 1870's arrl 1880's is the first of many canuoorcial uses. 'Ihe 
second story was rented for neetings arrl was known as Baughman' s Hall. In the 
late 19th century, at least part of the b.lilcli.rg was a Ffiysician's office, Dr. 
Lamar. In 1927, Asa P. stotel.myer opened an autcm:>bile repair garage in the 
south em of the wilding, for which a large opening to the shop was made in 
the west elevation. 'Ihe break in the concrete porch platfonn imicates the 
location of the repair garage; it is now covered by sicli.rg arrl a single wimow 
bay. '!he rest of the b.lilcli.rg was stotel.myer's residence. In 1934, stotelmyer 
opened a general store which operated until 1971. 'Ihe b.lilcli.rg is currently in 
partial use as office space for George c. Harne, Architect. 

Recher House, 12406 stottlemyer Rd.: 'Ihe two-story log or frame house had 
vinyl siding and an irregular bay arrangenent. 'Ihe first story on the south 
elevation has three bays and the second story has two. 'Ihe wimows are 6/6. A 
one-story porch with turned columns exterrls across the facade. 'Ihe roof is 
slate and the chimney is an exterior concrete block replacement of the original 
interior em flue. A two-story rear wing has a one-story shed. porch on the 
east side. A frame garage with composition sicli.rg and a starx:ling seam roof is 
located behim the house. Probably b.lilt about 1880, the house was one of 
several store and residence combinations on the north side of stottlemyer 
Road. Amanda and Alberta Recher had a millinery shop in the late 19th century 
and other occupants have included a doctor's office and a confectionery shop. 

Frame shop, 12406 stottlemyer Rd.: 'Ihe snall frame b.lilcli.rg is on the same lot 
as the Recher House and has had many cormnercial uses over tline. Built about 
1880-1890, it is one story in height with a storage attic. 'Ihe south elevation 
has a gable facade with two bays and a single entrance with 6/6 wimows arrl a 
4-panel door. 'Ihe sicli.rg is german and the roof is starx:ling seam netal. A 
second entrance is on the west elevation, along- with two 6 / 6 wimows. An 
extension of the b.lilcli.rg is attached to the north elevation. 'Ihe uses of the 
wilding, which is now a storage shed, include a confectionery shop, a h.rtcher 
shop, a newspaper office for the catoctin News which was published in the 
1880's and 1890's, a shoe shop operated by Jacob Smith, and a barber shop. 

lewis Lamar House; Pryor store, 12408 stottlemyer Rd.: '!he two-story frame 
house was probably wilt about 1877 by lewis Lamar, a physician. It had three 
bays in its original fonn and a fourth bay has been added to the west em of 
the house. '!he exterior is covered with german sicli.rg arrl the house has two 
entries, one in the added bay. '!he added bay may have been the Ffiysician' s 
office. 'Ihe windows are 6/6. A one-story porch with turned columns exterrls 
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across the south elevation. 'Ihe roof is standing seam metal. 'Ihe chllnney is 
located at the original west errl, now enclosed by the additional bay. Also on 
the property are a frame smmner kitchen with asbestos sh.in:;Jle siding an:l a 
standing seam metal roof. 'Ihe win:iows are 2/2 with m::>lded lintels arrl the door 
is a four-panel type. 'Ihe chllnney is located on the north interior wall. A 
frame srrokehouse has ton;JUe-arrl-groove siding an:l a ccttlfXJSition roof. In the 
1920's, Rooklyn Pryor ran a small general store in the first story of the 
house. 

D.lsing House, 12412 stottlemyer Rd.: Possibly Wilt l::>etween 1867 arrl 1872 by 
Elias D.lsing, the dwelling is a gable-fronted two-story frame Wilding with 
asl::>estos sh.in:;Jle siding arrl a one-story porch. It has three bays on the first 
story arrl two on the second story. 'Ihe sash is 2 /2. 'Ihe porch has turned 
columns. 'Ihe side elevations have irregular bays with similar sash. 'Ihe roof 
is starrling seam metal with a central chllnney. 

Samuel Holter store, 12416 stottlemyer Rd.: 'Ibis two-story brick dwelling was 
built as a combination store arrl residence about 1870. On the 1873 map, S. 
Holter is shown as the storekeeper arrl postmaster. 'Ihe house has stretcher 
bond walls painted white, with four bays originally arrl an added fifth bay on 
the east gable end. '!here are two entrances arrl 6/6 sash with plain lintels 
flanked by paneled shutters on the first story. 'Ihe roof is standing seam 
metal with interior end chimneys. A one-story porch with :roodern iron columns 
extends across the south elevation. A one-story rear shed addition with 
asl::>estos siding extends to the north. A frame garage with a hipped roof arrl 
gennan siding is located northeast of the house. 'Ihe general store went 
through several hands in the late 19th century, including Phleeger arrl Schroyer 
in the 1880's, Jonathan English in the 1890's, arrl at least two generations of 
the Pryor family in the early 2oth century. 

John Wesley Hoover House, 12415 stottlemyer Rd.: 'Ihe two-story brick house had 
a five-bay north elevation with a small porch sheltering the center three 
bays. 'IWo entrances are located in alternating bays. 'Ihe win:iows are 6/6 with 
plain lintels arrl sills. 'Ihe roof is standing seam metal arrl the chllnney is 
located at the interior east wall, arrl a patch at the west end indicates a 
removed second chimney in that location. A scroll-sawn bargeboard ornaments 
the cornice line. A log or frame smokehouse is located south of the house with 
gennan siding arrl a composition roof. A frame garage with gennan siding arrl a 
starrling seam gable roof is located southeast of the house. A frame chicken 
house stands on the south bank of the tributary stream which runs behind the 
house. 'Ihe outbuildings, except the garage, probably date from about 1900. 
'Ihe garage may have 1:::>een built in the 1930 1s. In the Wolfsville history of 
1972, the house is described as having 1:::>een a general store nm by John Duble, 
the owner in the 1880's, arrl a boarding house in addition to a residence. 

Jacob Wolf House, 12511 Wolfsville Rd. : 'Ibis house appears on the 1873 Titus 
map as one of the Jacob Wolf properties. It has two stories, three bays, arrl a 
cross gable on the west elevation. A one-story porch exterrls across the 
elevation. 'Ihe frame house is covered with vinyl siding arrl the 1/1 sash arrl 
metal shutters are replacements of the originals. 'Ihe roof is composition 
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material. A polygonal one-sto:ry bay is located on the first sto:ry. A 
two-sto:ry rear wing has a two-level open porch. '!he out:hrildings are a small 
frame barn with vertical siding am a stone srrokehouse with a starrling seam 
roof am an interior brick chimney. A frame garage with german siding, a 
standing seam metal roof, am replacement lift doors is also on the property. 
'!he house was probably l:::uilt about 1865-1870. Fran about 1892 to 1940, it was 
a milline:ry shop am residence of George am Lillie stottlemyer, who added the 
bay window as a display window. 

Maugans House, 12517 Wolfsville Rd.: '!his frame house was l:::uilt about 1897 by 
John Maugans, one of the several proprietors of the store ncM called Harne's 
store. It has an irregular L-plan with an exterrled gable roof over the small 
porch at the angle between the two wings. '!he porch once exterrled to the front 
of the gable portion of the west elevation, rut has been renoved. '!he exterior 
is covered with asbestos siding over german siding, visible where the porch 
roof has been renoved. 'Ihe roof is standing seam metal. '!he windows are 2 /2 
with molded lintels. 'Ihe chi:mney is located near the center of the roof. A 
rear 2-sto:ry wing has a one-sto:ry porch with brackets am turned coll.lllU1S. A 
frame outl:::uilding may have been a surmner kitchen; it has vertical siding am an 
exterior stone am brick chimney with a starrling seam metal roof. '!he house is 
currently unoccupied. 

stephens-Warrenfeltz House, 12521 Wolfsville Rd.: '!his house may have been 
built about 1970. It has a traditional vernacular plan with two stories, three 
bays, am a one-sto:ry porch with turned coll.lllU1S. It has alumim.un siding am 
1/1 sash. 'Ihe roof is standing seam metal am the chimneys are at the 
interior gable ends. A deteriorated frame chicken house am five other 
deteriorated frame outl:::uildings are located east of the house, which is 
currently unoccupied. A non-contril::uting concrete block repair shop l:::uilt in 
1952 is located south of the house. 

12536 Wolfsville Rd. : '!he 2-1/2-sto:ry house has a cross gable on the east 
elevation with a three-bay facade am a one-sto:ry porch ~ arourrl from the 
east to the south elevation. '!he frame house is covered with vinyl siding am 
has a patterned slate roof. '!he corners of the east elevation are diagonal, a 
variation of the late 19th century on the traditional plan. '!he chimneys are 
located at the interior ends, one having been replaced with an exterior 
concrete block flue. 'Ihe house was probably built about 1890. 

Bungalow, 12544 Wolfsville Rd.: '!his is the only l::ungalow in the survey 
district. Built about 1929-1930, it has 1-1/2 stories am is covered with 
aluminum siding. It has three bays am a one-sto:ry porch with tapered coll.lllU1S 
on the east elevation. 'Ihe column bases are brick. '!he gable roof has a 
center dormer with three 3/1 windows. '!he roof is muposition material. A 
two-sto:ry rear addition with an exterior brick chimney is located on the west 
elevation. A frame, hipped roof garage with original battened doors is 
located south of the house. 
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Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_ archeology-prehistoric _ community planning _ landscape architecture~ religion 
_ archeology-historic _ conservation _ law _ science 
~ agriculture _ economics _ literature _ sculpture 
~ architecture _ education _ military _ social/ 
_ art _ engineering _ music humanitarian 
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Applicable Exception: A 
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D 
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Level of Significance: national state x local 

G 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

'Ihe Wolfsville survey District is an excellent example of a small rural 
community of the early 19th century with minllnal cban::Jes in its character from about 
1819 to 1940. 'Ihe available 19th century maps of 1858 and 1873 shOIN that the 
village has remained a loose assembly of about 15-20 major buildings, mostly 
residences or combination stores and residences, with the rnost growth takin:J place 
roughly during the period from about 1840 to 1900. 'Ihe town's center has always 
been a place of commercial activity, with at least two stores or shops being active 
at any point in time from about 1860 to the 1970's. '!he village is currently mostly 
residential, with only one general store building still in operation as a 
~'Jnvenience store. 'Ihe commercial OP{X>rtunities generated by the meeting of several 
...iral roads and the connection to Smithsburg in Washington County, the nearest large 

town, brought the village into being and the dwellings built were those of the 
storekeepers, blacksmiths, shoemakers, milliners, and others. 'Ihe development of 
the village remained at a slOVJ pace throughout the late 19th century , unlike the 
growth of Myersville and Middletown, which were linked to Frederick and Hager~ 
from 1896 onwards by electric trolley lines, stimulating vigorous growth of housing 
and business both in the town and surrourrling country. Wolfsville experienced no 
effect from the trolley line, the nearest rail line being the Western Maryland stop 
in Smithsburg. Even the advent of the automobile did not bring much cban::Je to the 
town. 'Ihe buildings are all of the traditional style and materials of the 19th 
century: log, frame, brick, and stone. '!he only touches of national styles are 
found in the circa 1930 bungalOIN and the circa 1897 frame house on the north end of 
the survey district. Recent times have brought cban::Jes in exterior siding and 
roofing, as well as enclosures of rear wings and replacement of garages and 
outbuildings by concrete block. 'Ihe only church in the survey district also shows 
the effect of mcxiern building methods, with a stucco exterior over the 1847 stone 
original section and a mcxiern SUnday School wing. Only two dwellings built within 
the last 20 years are non-contributing, as is the 1972 elementary school. 



7. Description 

Condition 
_excellent 
_x_good 
~fair 

Check one 
_ deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins ~ altered 
_unexposed 

Check one 
~ original site 
_moved date of move 

Survey No. F-4-56 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

CDNI'RIBurING RESOURCE axJNT: 34 

'Ihe Wolfsville SUrvey District encompasses awroximately 20 acres centered on 
the intersection of Wolfsville, stottlemyer, and Pleasant Walk Roads in the 
unincorporated village of Wolfsville, a rural ccmmmity located in the northern 
section of the Middletown Valley in Frederick County, Maryland, which was 
established in the first decade of the 19th century and which achieved its greatest 
pericx:l of growth in the pericx:l about 1840-1900. 'lhe survey district contains 
approximately 41 buildings, of which 33 (80%) contril::ute to its significance. 'lhe 
buildings are residences, domestic outbuildings, a general store, a church, and 
three barns, one of which is a dated 1819 stone building. 'Ihe other buildings ranc:Je 
in date from about 1819 to about 1930. 'lhe architectural styles represented in the 
survey district are principally the vernacular style based on Ge.nnan traditional 
dwellings of the late 18th and early 19th centuries, with some influence of the 
historical revival styles of the late 19th century apparent in rooflines, wirrlow 
details, and decorative porch details. 'Ihe district also has one J::mqalow of about 
1930. 'Ihe commercial buildings include two general stores, one of which is still in 
operation, the other being an office building, and a small frame shop building 
currently used for storage. In addition, nnst of the dwellings have had pericx:ls of 
use as combined commercial/residential buildings. Aloc>ng the non-contributing 
buildings of the survey district are a small architectural office and a current1 

unoccupied repair shop. Most of the other non-contributing buildings are mode... 
garages and other outbuildings, and the 1972 Wolfsville School. 'Ihe stone church, 
originally built in 1847 and considerably rebuilt in 1893, has a stucco exterior 
with a modern foyer and an adjoining 1967 addition. 'Ihe buildings of the district 
are closely sited in the inunediate vicinity of the central crossroads, which is 
locally referred to as "the square". 'Ihe village plan has an additional road 
junction near the south end of the survey district, in conunon with many other towns 
and villages of the 19th century, in which road patterns followed physical features 
rather than regular plans leading to major junctions. 

'Ihe predominant building materials are log, frame, brick, and stone, with most 
wood buildings having modern artificial siding. Roofs are usually gable types with 
standing seam metal, slate or composition coverings. Most buildings have a 
one-story porch on the main facade. 'Ihe condition of the buildings varies from 
deteriorated to excellent. 'Ihe 1873 Titus Atlas map shows Wolfsville had 15 
buildings, 12 of which are still extant, in a loose grouping arourrl the square. 'Ihe 
missing buildings include a dwelling which has been replaced with a modern 
residence, a blacksmith shop, and an unidentified outbuilding. 'Ihe envirornnent of 
the survey district is rural, with open agricultural fields visible from alnnst any 
point in the district. Most of the modern development in the vicinity has taken 
place within the past 20 years and remains relatively unobtrusive visually. Middle 
Creek runs generally northwest to southeast along the east side of the survey 
district, generally forming its eastern bourrlary, and a small unnamed tributary 
crosses the district from west to east, joining the creek just east of the district. 

(Continued on separate sheet) 
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Maryland Historical Trust HISTORIC PROPERTIES 
Magi No. 

State Historic Sites Inventory' Fo-rm DOE _yes x no 

1. Name (indicate preferred name) 

historic Wolfsville Survey District 

and/or common 

2. Location 
12328 Harp Hill Rd.; 12400 block - 12544 Wolfsville Rd.; 

street & number 12406-12416 Stottlemyer Road _not for publication 

city, town Wolfs ville 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
__x_ district 
_ building(s) 
_structure 
_site 

_object 

Ownership 
_public 
_private 
~both 

Public Acquisition 
_in process 
_ being considered 
1L_not applicable 

_ vicinity of congressional district 6th 

county Frederick 

Status 
_x_ occupied 
_ unoccupied 
_work in progress 
Accessible 
__1L_ yes: restricted 
_ yes: unrestricted 
_no 

Present Use 
_K_ agriculture 
_x_ commercial 
-X- educational 
_ entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
~ private residence 
-X-- religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of ~ owners) 

name Multiple property owners 

street & number telephone no.: 

city, town state and zip code 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber 

street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio 

city, town Frederick state Md. 21701 

&. Representation in Existing Historica.1 surveys 

title 

date _federal _state _county __ local 

.:pository for survey records 

city, town state 
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